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Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-Schaible; Att. #2-Archuleta; Att. #3-Bachmeier; 
Att. #4-Vollmer; Att. #5-Copas; Att. #6-Burkle; Att. #7-
Ellefson 

 
Vice-Chairman Fors: We’ll call the meeting order and recognize Senator Schailbe. 
 
Senator Schaible, District 31: See Attachment # 1.  
 
Senator Oban: Can you give me some examples of academic initiatives? 
 
Senator Schaible: I was a member of the task force and when we visited some of the schools, 
we were in Watford City, some elementary teachers there would like to do some innovative 
type teaching, for example, teaching math and science at the same time in fourth grade or 
even fourth and fifth grades. They had some good plans to do that, but didn’t have a vehicle 
to do it. This would be part of that – it would take some extra time, extra work, extra curriculum 
and innovation of projects they would do. Others testifying after me will be able to share more 
ideas on that. Part of the task force was that we created a data base of the good things going 
across the state in innovation. This is an example of something of a smaller scale in house 
rather than blanketing the whole school. 
 
Senator Oban: This could potentially help to support funding needs that would be associated with 
these kinds of projects.  
 

Senator Schaible: Yes, it could be for this or professional development – teacher teach the teacher 

– project based and not to be on going.  
 
Senator Oban: Have you done any approximations of what that formula would amount to for certain 
school district sizes if they were to apply? 
 
Senator Schaible: My recollection is about $92 per student if every school and student would take 
advantage of this. That would probably be the minimum. If you take $10 million divided by the number 
of students, that is what you would get - $92 per student.  
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Senator Oban: Last question about the review committee – do you really think the compolation of 
that review committee are the people that know best about… 
 
Senator Schaible: This was brought forward by the task force and it is a starting point. I am sure 
there was going to be discussion on this.  
 
Vice-Chairman Fors: Further questions. Further testimony for SB 2217.  
 
(7:20) Nick Archuleta, ND United: See Attachment # 2.  
 
(9:30) Levi Bachmeier, Policy Director for Governor Burgum: See Attachment #3.  
 
(15:20) Mark Vollmer, Supt. of Minot Public Schools: See Attachment #4.  
 
(18:03) Chairman Schaible: Would you have any idea what these project based units might look 
like? 
 
Mark Vollmer: Minot is a Marzano school district – that is the model that we have chosen for teacher 
growth and evaluation. We are meeting the needs of students by prioritizing our standards. There are 
too many standards – if we taught each on to proficiency, we would have students in school until they 
were about 30.  We have created scales that are implementing in the classroom and have transferred 
them to something we call kids speak so, a student will be able to tell you where they are in the 
learning process on that standard. I have a plan to be a three and my teacher and I have a plan so I 
will get there. We have some teachers that are rocking this process and we have some teachers that 
need help and assistance with that. Like anything else, practice makes us better. We could take a 
teacher during a planning period and pay them a stipend to coach or mentor other teachers in the 
process. We could use this money for teacher-leader academies for continuing our broad based 
professional development plan for teachers and support staff. This will allow school districts to be 
innovative. Before I was superintendent in Minot, I was in Willow City. That’s a vast difference – 60 
kids in Willow City compared to about 1,000 in Magic City campus. The needs to be innovative in 
Willow City were far different than our needs to be innovative in Minot. At the end of the day, this 
allows individual schools holistically through a grassroots approach to look at what the needs are and 
develop a plan to meet the needs of the school to educate kids.  
 
Chairman Schaible: I think this was discussed earlier that this was a per year basis or a one-time 
shot. I think that is what we are looking at – we are looking to pay for new and futuristic things. We 
are not paying for past performance – correct? 
 
Mark Vollmer: It is not a merit pay bill. This year we might need emphasison skills development and 
employment, next year it might be something entirely different. The bottom line is that we have a 
cadre of incredibly talented staff members that can do so much for us but don’t have the mechanism 
to make that happen. It wouldn’t be long term – it would be on a year to year basis.  
 
(21:18) Senator Davison: I support the concept, but am concerned about the details. My 
understanding is that within a teacher contract, if that teacher is getting paid additional dollars during 
their planning time, they are already being paid for their planning time. Now we are paying on top of 
that, so, it isn’t that they shouldn’t be paid on top of that, that really isn’t the argument to me. It is the 
matter about school districts about how someone determines the process. How do you keep teachers 
from saying, “Well, they are getting paid to do that, why didn’t I get paid to do this?” In your mind, how 
do you see that process evolving in your school? 
 
Mark Vollmer: We are forced every day to make tough decisions. Our district completes a needs 
assessment every year that helps us define what direction we need to go in, where our training needs 
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to be, and sometimes we need to make tough decisions that need to be made with that. What do we 
first of all value as a district, how does it fit in to our school improvement plans and where is it going 
to move us? Not always easy decisions to make, but at the end of the day, that is the business we 
are in. Locally, this allows a school district to make a determination on that. As far as a prep period, I 
do want to clarify that. Right now our secondary teachers have two prep periods a day to prepare and 
organize their day and get everything ready to teach. They teach five periods a day. If they have to 
teach six periods, we pay them for the additional class period. Each school does that differently. The 
idea is that the local school district will need to develop that plan.  
 
Senator Davison: We incorporate into the foundation aid payment for three professional 
development days. That is what we are supporting from the state tax dollars. How do we know or 
make sure this is on top of that and not mixing and matching those professional development days 
with pay for these dollars and making sure it is on top of what we are already funding?  
 
Mark Vollmer: It is the process of the development and approval of the plan by whatever that group 
is. We’ve heard some testimony of what that plan might look like. Our needs are great, we had our 
PD day yesterday and it was as individualized as possible, but we between secretaries and teaching 
staff, and all others, it was a lot of people and when you have the full three-day type, what happens 
is you end up taking a shotgun approach at professional development. This allows us to pinpoint 
down to what teachers, paraprofessionals, secretaries, or principals exactly what they need to do 
their jobs better. You can’t have a one-day, full day PD that is going to meet the needs of everybody. 
This takes us one step further in doing that. My idea of that would be that it would be part of the 
provision in the plan. The bill may be need to be amended to say that this isn’t what has been done 
in the past. This is new, creative, innovative finding ways to better meet the needs of our students.  
 

(25:49) Senator Davison: Schools are already doing things that are innovative and sometimes we 
need to do what we are doing better. From my standpoint, it wouldn’t matter to me if you just built on 
what you are already doing and trying get better at it. It doesn’t have to be something brand new 
because sometimes it complicates the other things that you have prioritized. As part of the task force, 
when you established this taskforce to review plans, what are they reviewing or looking for?  

Mark Vollmer: I can’t give you an answer for how every school in the state would develop that, but I 
can tell you how we would. Needs assessments through a professional learning committee that works 
diligently to identify what the key topics are in our district. That would be put together with a direct link 
to the AdvancEd school improvement plan. When we talk about not doing things done in the past, 
there is an option for enhancing that work. This should be designed to make us better. The plan needs 
to be laid out and addressed through whatever this mechanism this committee or the legislature 
ultimately would approve. 

Senator Davison: To maximize the benefit, do you feel that is the right group of people that can give 
the right kind of feedback and connect with what the AdvancEd plans and goals are? Perhaps the 
personalized learning in some areas or the scheduling or grading or whatever they are looking to do. 
How did you come up with the makeup of the committee and what are your thoughts about that 
committee?  

Mark Vollmer: I don’t know specifically where we drew a line in the sand and said what that 
committee would need to look like. It was more of a philosophical statement in regard to who would 
be the key players. The process about who that would be would be flexible. I don’t believe it can be 
entirely administrative – Department of Public Instruction down. There needs to be people that help 
look at that. Like any other report that we do, and we do many for the Department of Public Instruction, 
that would be a whole different conversation – I’d be happy to talk with you at some point. It would 



Senate Education Committee  
SB 2217 
1/21/2019 
Page 4  
   

have to be designed in a way that would clearly delineate what a school district is planning to do. It is 
a small, but important issue in the process.  

Vice-Chairman Fors: Do you get your school board involved in this? Approve the stipends? Plans? 

Mark Vollmer: At this stage, our school board is involved in the school improvement process primarily 
through the indicators we use and the retreat model meetings as well. Right now we don’t have a 
method for paying stipends, so in general we do pay people for teaching one semester hour class 
and sixth hour pay, but those are all based on an administrative level. But, certainly school boards 
need to be a key component in that discussion.  

Chairman Schaible: Other questions. Thank you.  

(31:06) Kathern Froelich, Missouri River Education Cooperative and a member of the 
Innovation Committee: The things I learned on that committee were enormous. We visited schools 
in our state that are doing innovative things – robotics, individualized personalized instruction. 
However, those are pockets of innovation. I am here to support SB 2217. I have received an iPhone 
watch for Christmas and I am still learning how to figure it out, but that is the world we live in today. 
Our kids, all of them deserve to have the skills and the knowledge to be able to fit in that world.  I am 
passionate about our reservation schools. My fear is that without continuous support for our teachers 
in our reservation schools, we will be left behind once again. If you look at the data, who are the 
dropout rates effecting? Who the test scores? It is the reservation schools. They need support. 
Turnover rates are high. Attendance issues are constant. I believe the key is to engage those students 
in different ways. We are not talking about changing the curriculum or the standards. We are talking 
about engaging the students in a different way. I am here to encourage you to look at this in a different 
way. I know there are details that need to be meshed out as always there are details. Don’t forget, it 
is all about the kids.  

(34:09) Amiee Copas, ND Council of School Leaders: See Attachment #5. 

(38:35) Senator Davison: From the beginning of the testimony today, we heard this was not a 
teacher pay, teacher bonus, merit pay bill. But the examples that keep coming up are about paying 
teachers for things they are already doing. Those are the examples. It is the biggest concern that I 
have. If we are going to invest $10 million, it is not about whether a person should go to a conference 
and come back and help their school. They are already being paid to do that. They have planning 
periods to plan ahead of time for that substitute teacher, they have lesson plans laid out, many times 
for months. Now they come back with the expectation they will train other teachers or provide that 
leadership. Now we are taking dollars and pay that person to do that same thing, but we are not 
gaining anything as a state with the tax dollars we are investing. They are already going to do that 
and now we are just going to pay them for it. So what do we gain by the $10 million. That’s what I am 
trying to figure out. Do you have other ideas about how we can enhance what we are doing? How do 
we know we gain something from that $10 million and we didn’t just pay dollars to get the same 
results we already have? 
 
Amiee Copas: A couple of areas to look at. First of all, when I was a teacher, I taught six periods 
and had one prep period. I voluntarily gave that up and took on teaching another course and I got 
paid for it. The reason I got paid for it is because when you give up a prep period, that prep period 
becomes 6:00 in the morning, or 6:00 at night when the rest of us are at home having supper and 
hanging out with our kids. So when you give up your plan period, that means you’re taking on more 
work – at lease our great teachers. The reason they are great teachers is because they don’t tool box 
every year and pull out the same lesson plans that they used last year and probably not as effective. 
They are constantly working on prepping to get it better. To say that giving up their prep period and 
we should pay them for that even though it is paid time, you are right, but the likelihood is that now 
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they are taking extra time outside of work to maintain their level of effectiveness. As far as other 
pieces, we continue to ask our teachers to do more for nothing more. We ask our administrators to 
do the same thing. We have talked about the difficulty recruiting and maintaining teachers. From that 
standpoint, they look at coming into this profession and we continue to ask them to spin more plates 
on their thing and keep as many balls in the air as possible. We are never going to take a ball out 
from under them or compensate them for the extra thing, we are just going to ask them to do more 
and keep doing it because they did it last year. At some point we are going to hit this time where the 
snowball is going to start falling backwards on us and we are going to have even more struggles. In 
the business world, when I ask my staff to do extraordinary things over and above, they are bonus 
them. This innovative academy with seven full day sessions and the teachers and administrators are 
coming to me saying this is the hardest work we’ve have ever done. This is going to take so much 
work and time at home. They are struggling with how to really do this well. Maybe a way to soften 
that blow would be to provide a minor level of compensation to them. It would be something toward 
the effort.  
 
Senator Davison: I’m not against compensating teacher and additional dollars. People saying it is 
not a teacher pay thing, but we keep talking about compensating people for things they are already 
doing. As a legislator, if we are going to invest $10 million in schools, I want to know what in addition 
to what is already happening. Not back paying somebody for something they are already doing. I 
don’t disagree that they should be compensated, the schools can do that right now if they want to. I 
am trying to help you sell this down the line as we move this bill through. I think you are going to run 
into trouble if we don’t figure out a way to have better examples about how it is going to impact kids, 
culture, behavior, safety, teacher safety. How do we get to the point where we are using examples 
about how our kids are benefiting from these $10 million? 
 
Amiee Copas: Let’s say, hypothetically speaking that a school district is going to go ahead and 
develop a plan. They’ve done the plan with their teachers and they are going to open a position and 
advertise to fill the position. The intent is to do something the school district has not done before and 
we have not asked teachers to do in the past. We are going to sell the plan and ask teachers to apply 
for the position. Part of the plan is going to be that we have identified SMART goals and we know we 
are strategically looking at what we are going to accomplish, here is the work we need to have done 
and here is the goal. We will look at the data to see how we did with that particular SMART goal. This 
is something a school district might not be able to take under its current staffing opportunities. They 
would be looking and saying, “We need to hire somebody to do this work.” So they provide the first 
opportunity to hire to their staff, to apply for this position for this contracted work we are going to do 
over the next semester, six or eight months. Part of the plan the committee would review is here is 
our goal, here is our opportunity for data collection and we are going to report back to you the results. 
In a plan like that, we would be answering to your question. We are looking at doing something 
specific, we are advertising, we are opening this opening this up for teachers to apply, Teachers 
apply, we hire the one we think can best do the job, we analyze how we did with it and at the end of 
the day, we report back to you on the results.  
 
Senator Davison: And then, they would be able to share it across school districts in the state and 
we would have something tangible to build on and scale for other teachers. And even, pay the 
teachers additional dollars to go to different schools if they were interested. 
 
Amiee Copas: Especially if we do smart work and partner with our REAs. We need to anchor a lot 
of the things we do with our REAs and hopefully, some day we can get to a point where we have a 
person that coordinates the REAs so we have really great communication or maybe like a 
coordination council that coordinates these ideas. We can share out these things and deliver the 
services across the state so we can get to the schools so that nobody is left behind.  
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Elroy Burkle, Small Organized Schools: See Attachment #6. I see how rural schools can benefit 
from this and support the passage of the bill. In the Lisbon, Marion, Litchfield area they have smart 
labs. Visiting with Dr. Johnson, they want to bring teachers together from these three schools and 
really dive into the curriculum. I see this as an option for or an opportunity for the rural schools to 
come together to work on the curriculum that you can’t do during the normal day because the teachers 
are expected to teach. They could do it on a weekend or during the summer. They could be brought 
together, dig deep into the curriculum and this would give incentives for doing that. They are small 
schools, so $92 per student in a small school isn’t a lot, but by pooling with other small schools or 
with federal programs. Then that $92 grows and then you can bring more people together because 
in those small districts there is only one first grade teacher, but if you bring three school districts 
together you have three. They can collaborate and go from there. This bill also reminds me of Goals 
2000? Federal dollars for school districts to sit down, figure out where they want to go. A local 
decision. Individual schools have individual needs or wants.  
 
(50:23) Alexis Baxley, ND School Boards Association: I couldn’t say it better than my colleagues 
have already said it, so we want you to know we stand in support of the bill.  
 
(50:50) Rod Bachman, ND Association of Non-Public Schools: Supportive of any effort to 
increase innovation in education. We believe it is good for the public and non-public schools. If either 
can learn about innovation in education, then both can use it. On behalf of our 7,000 students and 
their ND taxpaying parents and the ND taxpaying teachers in those schools, we would like to make 
the point that many of those teachers move back and forth between the public and non-public system. 
Innovation can be beneficial to both. It should not be a surprise to anyone in this country that 
innovation can come the private sector. Therefore, we would encourage you to amend the bill include 
the teachers in the non-public schools in this innovation effort because we believe our teachers can 
add to this effort.  
 
(52:33) Ann Ellefson: Director of Acedemic Support in the Department of Public Instruction: 
See Attachment # 7.  
 
Senator Oban: How do we tie this to the ND State Strategist Vision? 
 
Ann Ellefson: Yes, we believe very strongly that it can be a vehicle to move the vision forward. You 
brought up a great point, all of our schools are in very different places. There are some schools where 
a PLC –professional learning community- where teachers get together and study a topic together, 
that is nonexistent. In another school, it was an innovative practice that they were doing 20 years 
ago. The need is very great, the diversity is great and yet it should be that local school board that 
helps to develop that plan, figure out what its needs are and develop supports and incentives for 
teachers to help address those needs. An element that isn’t addressed in the bill, but I don’t know if 
a report is the best answer, but I do think we do need a place to celebrate what we learn. $10 million 
is a lot of money. What is the return on investment? What is being produced and how can we celebrate 
and learn from it.  
 
Senator Davison: Do you believe we have put a strong emphasis on accountability and results and 
data as we are moving forward with things that we do in professional development? Are we using 
data to make decisions? 
 
Ann Ellefson: I think it is an area that we are definitely moving toward, we have very limited “levers” 
to pull for accountability. We often see our accountability on funding come through those federal 
funds. I do think there has to be a better solution then a report – to having everybody report on what 
they do and how we can learn from that. We are trying to make better decisions with the data that we 
have and how we use those funds, but the accountability question is a tough question to answer.  
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Senator Davison: My point is well taken, at least how I took it. There has to be something to show 
how we impact kids on this bill. We just throw it out there and hope. This is what this bill is – hope, 
excitement and I appreciate you talking about a report or some accountability because if there isn’t 
any, then we are just paying teachers for things that are already happening in a majority of schools. 
Is that your idea of why we need some report and accountability to understand what is really 
happening? 
 
Ann Ellefson: I have grown up in the Department of Public Instruction and under federal programing, 
so I am familiar with reporting and I don’t think that is the best answer, but I do see we invest a lot of 
funding in K12 education and we don’t always have that mechanism or vehicle to celebrate what we 
have learned or what is not working. I do not believe that a report is the best answer for that, but I do 
believe with investments like this we need accountability and also need to evaluate what is our return 
on investment. As a citizen of ND, I am a strong believer in evaluating that.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Thank you. Other testimony in favor of the bill. Agency testimony. Testimony in 
opposition to the bill. Seeing none, we will close the hearing on SB 2217.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to teacher incentives for leadership in education program; and to provide for an 
exemption. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Schaible: SB 2217 is the incentives for leadership in education program (TILE).  
 
Senator Davison: I like the concept of the TILE bill. When I look at Iowa and what they have 
done, they have spent about a $157 million – that was their initial appropriation to do the 
TILE bill. At this point, I think the funding source creates problems and I don’t think we have 
had an in depth look about the long term vision would be for this project and how we would 
best implement it. I would prefer that we look at it and study it for a couple of years over the 
interim and identify the funding source, engage some different groups at a deeper level, 
including legislators. I wouldn’t support SB 2217 in the current form. 
 
Chairman Schaible: So are you suggesting a study. 
 
Senator Davison: Yes.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other discussion. I would agree there are problems with this bill – first 
of all the directions of how it would be implemented would be tough. We would have to put 
some very descriptive language in it. The second thing is it is out of turn back money and 
quite frankly, there is no turn back money the first year of the biennium. I like the idea of 
looking at it. Senator Davison are you going to look at an amendment? 
 
Senator Davison: I will. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to teacher incentives for leadership in education program; and to provide for an 
exemption. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-19.0724.01001 

 
Chairman Schaible: I believe we have an amendment to SB 2217 going around. See Att. 
#1. Senator Davison will you explain your amendment. 
 
Senator Davison: SB 2217 is a bill that was proposed by the K12 Education Taskforce – the 
teacher incentives for leadership in education (TILE). The concept is good – it was used in 
Iowa. There are some things that were troubling to me – who reviews the plans for example, 
how do we know if $10 million is the right number, where the funding came from, how do we 
want to focus it, what do we want to do, do we want to leave it at the schools, I hog housed 
the bill for a study. You can see the study there, it talks about the feasibility and desirability 
of creating a teacher incentive leadership program. I would move that 19.0724.01001 be 
adopted.  
 
Senator Oban: Second. 
 
Roll Call vote: Yeas: 7; Nays: 0; Absent 0. 
 
The amendment is adopted.  
 
Senator Davison: I would move a Do Pass on SB 2217 as amended. 
 
Senator Oban: Second. 
 
Roll Call Vote: Yeas: 7; Nays: 0; Absent 0. 
 
Senator Schaible will carry the bill. 
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☐ Subcommittee 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill to provide for a legislative management study of a teacher incentive for leadership 
program 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3, 4 

 
Chairman Owens:   Opened hearing on SB 2217. 
 
Sen. Schaible: (Attachment 1) 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions from the committee?  Anyone in support? 
 
Aimee Copas, NDCEL: (Attachment 2) 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions from the committee?   Anyone else in support of SB 2217? 
 
Levi Bachmeier, Policy Director, Governor’s Office: (Attachment 3) 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions from the committee? 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  When you build a program you build it with goals in mind and there 
is a statement in here ‘determine the success of the program’.   I was wondering if someone 
could tell me what would be ideal for what success would be.   
 
Levi Bachmeier:  In the amended version it is looking at what are the specific initiatives that 
districts are trying to make progress on and it would require additional reporting requirements 
so we can understand how districts are spending that money and have a conversation about 
where the best opportunities are to share the best practices.  Some of these dollars may 
move the needle in one district.  Can we help share that message and scale it elsewhere 
across the state?  I think the goal would be that these dollars are to move the district’s 
strategic plan forward and I think the question about its success would be whether or not 
those dollars accomplish that goal.  
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Chairman Owens:  Rep. Hager, the way I read that sentence is that it is saying that the study 
would identify the metrics necessary to measure success. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  As the bill was originally introduced, would the idea be that each 
school has a certain amount of positions for these leadership roles and then would it be a 
temporary position or would that be their salary for the rest of their career? 
 
Levi Bachmeier:  The recommendation that came out of the task force was that any position 
designated under TILE wouldn’t last any more than two years, recognizing the need to 
continually reiterate and innovate in terms of what are the needs of a district.  This wouldn’t 
have that much of an impact if we took $91 per student, which is what the original $10M fiscal 
note would do and say that we would provide a permanent raise for somewhere between 2 
and 20 teachers in a school district.  To make sure that as the needs change, the skill sets 
necessary to meet those needs may change as well.  We know that our great teachers across 
the state have a variety of skills and strengths and it is how do we match those abilities with 
the current needs of the districts to continue to move that strategic plan which is locally 
derived and locally executed. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  A thing I see in the fire service is to make a decision as to continue 
being a firefighter or quit being a firefighter and get into management.   I am sure this is the 
same with teachers, to have the opportunity to lead and actually get recognition for that.  In 
the Senate, was there discussion about different methods to be cautious about going forward 
with, like a sunset or matching funds, etc. that we could work with? 
 
Levi Bachmeier:  This was modeled off of the conversation had by the Innovative Education 
Task Force in addition to the learning that was done with the teacher leadership 
compensation system implemented in the state of Iowa.  They had the same question as to 
how do we keep great teachers in the classroom knowing that over 50% of teachers won’t 
reach the 5-year mark in their tenure.  A number of the variables they identified was more 
flexibility in seeking leadership positions that didn’t take them out of the classroom and finding 
opportunities to continue to collaborate and build their practices and share their skills outside 
of the traditional classroom setting. The Iowa superintendent advised that the first year be 
used for planning and conversation and the second year for implementation.  That would 
make the bang for the buck stretch farther not having to separate the dollars out over two 
years in the next biennium, but at the same time being thoughtful about creating how those 
dollars would be utilized, executing against that plan and the opportunity for the legislators 
to come back in two years and ask those questions.  Whether that is a sunset at the end of 
this upcoming biennium or simply a pilot program, we are as excited to see what districts 
would come up with.   
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  This enhances the innovative education bill that 
was passed last session and aligns with the strategic vision of education for North Dakota.  
If we don’t do this, we are really dropping the ball. 
 
Levi Bachmeier:   I agree.  We’ve had a unique opportunity with great input and engagement 
from the field of what the state strategic plan can and should look like.  The premise of the 
bill is that innovation costs nothing which is true and innovation that results in programs or 
the need for professional development for our educator’s to execute on those systems and 
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that vision for our district might.  It’s equally unfair to say we need to focus our instruction 
less on content and more on skilled development and performance assessments and say to 
our teachers – go do that.   
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  Is the measurement of the assessment going to be routine in 
attracting teachers or is it going to be the student outcomes? 
 
Levi Bachmeier:  I would view it as a both/and.  The other ‘and’ I would include in that is the 
locally defined vision of what student success and teacher engagement looks like.  That 
would be up to the legislature to see if those dollars were spent in accordance with what the 
original vision was to forward district empowerment.  There is an opportunity to do both. 
 
Chairman Owens:   Any further questions from the committee?   Any others in support? 
 
Nick Archuleta, ND United:  I would like to associate ND United with remarks that were 
made by Mr. Bachmeier.  We stand in full support of the study and we hope that the study 
comes back and finds that the original bill was sufficient and action will be taken on it next 
legislative session. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions from the committee?    Anyone else in support of SB 
2217? 
 
ElRoy Burkle, ND Small Organized Schools:  We support SB 2217.  The bill in its original 
form brought back memories of the old goals 2000 federal program where schools were able 
to identify what they wanted to grow in and the funding was spent to improve as well as 
identify what didn’t work.  Too many times we want to meet success and front page news 
success, but there are more times than not that we have to say this didn’t work and what can 
we do to make it better.  This bill will allow for that study to collaborate, reward good teachers 
that want to go on for the leadership.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions from the committee?   Anyone else in support? 
 
Alexis Baxley, ND School Board Association:  We are here in support of SB 2217 and I 
will duplicate what they all said.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions from the committee?  Anyone else in support?  
 
Ann Ellefson, Director of Academic Support, North Dakota Department of Public 
Instruction: (Attachment 4) 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any questions from the committee?  Others in support?  Any opposition?    
Neutral testimony on SB 2217.    We will close the hearing. 
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Chairman Owens:  We’re looking at SB 2217. 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg: I’ve done some research since we last saw this bill, specifically 
looking into the Iowa model.  That was something talked about by the governor’s staff.  They 
have model instructors and instead of hiring people from the outside they pay an extra stipend 
to some of the teachers they consider good teachers and help them to improve.  It is showing 
results but I think North Dakota can do better.  In the interim we had a principal from West 
Fargo come and explain the new teaching methods they were using at the school and some 
of them were extreme.  He also had facts and they scored in the top three nationally and in 
educational scores.  He reported that the entire school is doing well.  It is low income and 
other students who don’t do as well in school who are doing well.  After that testimony there 
were a lot of committee members wondering how we can duplicate this across the state. 
 
That is what this study addresses.  It had some funding in it.   I considered adding some 
funding back in after talking with senate colleagues and we may need to add things to look 
at in the study.  One of those things was how it integrates in with the rest of the programs out 
there right now.   Another is to study how it fits into the strategic vision for Pre-K-12.  I am 
having those amendments drafted right now and that is what it will say.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Would you have them ready by this afternoon? 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  Probably after our morning session. 
 
Chairman Owens:  We will set SB 2217 aside and Rep. Guggisberg will have something for 
us tomorrow morning.   
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:  If you will remember, my questioning was what was the success 
of the program.  That is the part I would like to see in here where it would be a little more 
student focused, students with disabilities, low income, etc.  As I am reading it, the success 
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of the program is primarily on teacher retention and recruitment versus how this is going to 
affect students. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Rep. Guggisberg is bringing his amendment and we can look at it and 
see what the committee thinks.  You are more than welcome to do that. 
 
Rep. LaurieBeth Hager:   Thank you. 
 
Chairman Owens:  I would like to get it out of here by Wednesday afternoon.  
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Chairman Owens:  We’ll be opening on SB 2217.   
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg: When we study the amendments that were handed out, it should 
also be included with other development programs as how this fits into it and also relating to 
the statewide strategic vision.  There was language in there about pre-K through grade 12.  
We removed that because this doesn’t have anything to do with pre-K, it is more with the 
higher grades.  I would like to Move the amendment. 
 
Rep. Longmuir:  Seconded. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any discussion? 
 
A Voice Vote was taken and the motion carried. 
 
Rep. Brandy Pyle:  I’d like to make a Motion for a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2217. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  Seconded. 
 
Chairman Owens:  We have a motion for a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2217. 
A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes  13, No  0, Absent  1.   A Do Pass as Amended motion 
carries.  Rep. Guggisberg will carry SB 2217. 
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